
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 01, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Anti-racism Proclamation 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Pre-Agenda work session - January 12, 2022 

B. Regular Meeting - January 18, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Agreements with Florida Building Alliance Corp. and RMJ Maintenance Corp.  

B. Resolution No. 10-2022 – approving the FUSION Mini-Project Grant Memorandum of 
Understanding with PBSO 

C. Change Order 02 to B&B Underground Construction, Inc. for the Lift Station 12 & 14 
Improvement Project. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Resolution No. 08-2022 – amending the City Commission’s Rules of Procedure 

B. Discussion regarding HRPB  

C. Discussion regarding the establishment of a resolution or ordinance to require 
developers to meet with stakeholders about their developments 

D. Discussion regarding a parking/mobility advisory board 

E. Discussion regarding the development of a policy for public use of existing day 
docks on the City's intracoastal waterfront 



CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 
February 9 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 am 
February 18 - regular meeting 
February 22 - electric utility meeting 
February 23 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 am 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION PRE-AGENDA WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022 - 9:00 AM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 9:09 AM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:23) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega and Christopher McVoy. Also present were City Manager 

Carmen Davis, Assistant City Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City 

Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.  ABSENT: Commissioner Kimberly Stokes. 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION (0:47) 

 

A. Possible agenda topics 

 

Action:  Consensus to have a work session regarding parking and mobility issues in the future. 

 

Action:  Consensus to discuss funding for painting “Pride” in crosswalks. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (50:45)  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:00 AM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: February 1, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:02 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:20) Present were Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and Commissioners Sarah 

Malega, Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes.  Also present were City Manager Carmen 

Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.  Mayor Betty Resch 

was absent. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (0:51) There was a moment of silence. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:13) led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING (1:39) 

 

Presentation A, Anti-racism Proclamation and New Business C, Resolution No. 08-2022 – 

amending the City Commission’s Rules of Procedure were moved to the February 1 meeting 

and Presentation C, Presentation by School Board Representative Erica Whitfield will be 

rescheduled. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, McVoy and 

Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (2:47) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. (moved to February 1, 2022 meeting) Anti-racism Proclamation 

 

B. Presentation by Jervonte Edmonds, CEO & Founder of Suits for Seniors (3:00) 

 

C. (deleted) Presentation by School Board Representative Erica Whitfield 

 

D. PBSO quarterly presentation by Captain Todd Baer (11:40) 

 

Commissioner Malega left the meeting at 6:30 PM and joined via Zoom. 

 

E. Stormwater Flooding Presentation by Brian Shields, Water Utilities Director (41:34) 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (1:02:24) 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, January 18, 2022 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (1:14:08) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (1:26:55) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

the following minutes: 

 

A. Pre-agenda work session – December 22, 2021 

 
B. Regular Meeting – January 4, 2022 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, McVoy and 

Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (1:27:30) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of 

Non-Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A. Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair to CRA Board 

B. Resolution No. 05-2022 – approving and authorizing the Mayor to execute the FY22 DLIS 

ARPA Florida grant award 21-ARPA-16 for implementation of the Connecting Our 

Community program 

C. Resolution 06-2022 – Supporting and Adopting the Palm Beach County League of Cities’ 

Resolution regarding Lake Okeechobee System Operation Manual 

D. Change Order #2 – final with Foster Marine Contractors, Inc. for District 3, Year 3 outfall 

project 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, McVoy and 

Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (1:27:54) 

 

A. Work Order #8 with The Paving Lady for paving work to be completed on 17th Ave N 

from N D St to the railroad tracks, 22nd Ave N and Park Street, and 21st Ave N from Park 

St to the dead end (1:28:03) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes 

approve/disapprove Work Order #8 with The Paving Lady for paving work to be completed 

on 17th Ave N from N D St to the railroad tracks, 22nd Ave N and Park Street, and 21st Ave 

N from Park St to the dead end. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, McVoy and 

Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, January 18, 2022 

 

Commissioner McVoy left the meeting at 7:32 PM and returned at 7:33 PM. 

 

B. Resolution No. 07-2022 – approve and authorize the submission of an application to EDA 

for grant funding under the ARPA Good Jobs Challenge (1:30:42) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF THE CITY’S APPLICATION TO THE 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION FOR GRANT FUNDING UNDER 

THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GOOD JOBS CHALLENGE TO IMPLEMENT 

AN APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM FOR PROSPECTIVE LINEMEN FOR THE 

CITY’S ELECTRIC UTILITY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to 

approve/disapprove Resolution No. 07-2022 authorizing the submission of an application to 

EDA for grant funding under the ARPA Good Jobs Challenge.  

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, McVoy and 

Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

C. (moved to February 1, 2022 meeting) Resolution No. 08-2022 – amending the City 

Commission’s Rules of Procedure 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: (1:35:41) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia provided the following report: 

 

 Stated that the City would do what it could regarding rental prices; establishing rent control 

would be a long process. 

 

 Said that he would examine any creative ideas that were put forth regarding rents, including 

adding criteria to the sustainable bonus program. 

 

City Manager Davis stated that she would contact other cities in Florida to learn how the 

issue was being dealt with. 

 

 Stated that masks could be mandated in City buildings, but there could not be a vaccination 

mandate.  

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (1:44:02) 

 

City Manager Davis provided the following report: 

 

 Expressed regret that she was unable to attend the MLK events but would watch them 

online. 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, January 18, 2022 

 

 Reported that operations were going remarkably well even with the new COVID 

outbreak; she asked for patience if there were delays due to illness. 

 

 Stated that the dais would decide about the L&M project and the City was evaluating 

the condition of the buildings. 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

January 25 - electric  

January 26 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 AM  

January 26 - work session (beach complex) @ 4 PM 

February 1 – regular meeting  

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:49:53) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:51 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, McVoy and 

Stokes.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved February 1, 2022.  

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: February 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Agreements with Florida Building Alliance Corp. and RMJ Maintenance Corp.  

 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreements with Florida Building Alliance Corp. and RMJ Maintenance Corp. authorize 
each vendor to enter into a three (3) year goods and services contract for General Facility 
Maintenance Services for Buildings and Parks.     

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Public Works Facilities Maintenance Division is responsible for the upkeep and 
maintenance of all City buildings and parks.  Based on the current staffing levels, it is necessary 
to subcontract various maintenance related services to keep the City’s buildings and parks in a 
safe, functional and aesthetic operating condition. 

The City advertised the RFP for “General Facility Maintenance Related Services for Buildings 
and Parks” and received a total of two (2) proposals from qualified vendors.  A Selection 
Committee met on December 1, 2021 to review the proposals and provide recommendation for 
contract award.  The committee selected both vendors, Florida Building Alliance Corp. and RMJ 
Maintenance Corp. to be awarded the annual contract.  The contract is on an as needed basis 
and is for an initial three (3) year term with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year 
periods.       

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreements with Florida Building Alliance Corp. and RMJ 
Maintenance Corp.   

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement – Florida Building Alliance Corp. 
Agreement – RMJ Maintenance Corp.   



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 75,000 75,000 75,000 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

        

*Varies by 
Project 

Contractual 
Services 

 TBD TBD  75,000 TBD 

*The funding account will be determined by the Department requesting the work.   



 
 

Page 1 of 15 
 

AGREEMENT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 
(GENERAL FACILITY MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

FOR CITY BUILDINGS AND PARKS) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made ______________, 2022, between the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), with its office located at 7 North Dixie Highway, 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460, and Florida Building Alliance Corp., a corporation authorized 
to do business in the State of Florida (“CONTRACTOR”) with its office located at 631 Southridge 
Rd, Delray Beach, FL 33444. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY is a municipal corporation organized and existing pursuant to the 

Charter and the Constitution of the State of Florida; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY issued Request for Proposals #22-201 for the general facility 

maintenance services for the City’s buildings and parks to include internal and external general 
carpentry, interior and exterior facility remodeling, flooring, paving, roofing, painting, plumbing, 
fencing, gates, vandalism repairs, ADA accessibility installation and related services on an as 
needed basis (hereinafter “RFP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR submitted a proposal to provide general facility maintenance 

services as described and set out in the RFP; and   
 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accept the CONTRACTOR’s proposal (with the 

CONTRACTOR’s proposed rates attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) in order for CONTRACTOR to 
render the goods and services to the CITY as provided herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR further warrants that it is experienced and capable of 

performing the tasks hereunder in a professional and competent manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY finds awarding the RFP to the CONTRACTOR as described herein 

serves a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the CITY hereby engages the services of the CONTRACTOR, and 

in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. TERM   

 
1.1 The term of this Agreement for Goods and Services ("Agreement") shall be for three (3) 
years, with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year renewals periods upon the 
mutual agreement of both parties and dependent on the annual appropriation of funds by the 
CITY’s City Commission. The renewal terms may be approved by the City Manager upon the 
same terms, conditions and pricing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be earlier 
terminated as set forth in this Agreement. 
 
2.  SCOPE OF WORK  
 
2.1  The Scope of Work includes general facility maintenance services for the City’s Buildings 
and Parks to include internal and external general carpentry, interior and exterior facility 





























































EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: February 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Leisure Services 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 10-2022 – approving the FUSION Mini-Project Grant Memorandum of 
Understanding with PBSO 

 
SUMMARY: 

This resolution approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City and the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office setting forth the terms and 
conditions for an award in the amount of $15,000 in funding assistance under the FUSION Mini 
Project grant program.  These funds will be used to support the City’s Recreation Division 
programs and activities to be conducted in the south end of the City. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Resolution No. 10-2022 approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) between the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office (“PBSO”) and the City for 
$15,000 in grant funding under its FUSION Mini-Project grant program.  PBSO is making funding 
from its Bureau of Justice Assistance Grant award 2018-BX-BJ-0004 available to address crime 
and quality of life determinants in the City of Lake Worth Beach.  As part of the overall project 
plan, these funds have been allocated to support community projects created by members of 
the FUSION Project-Leadership Council. 
 
The MOU sets forth the terms and conditions for the use of these grant funds.  The approved 
scope of work includes various outreach programs geared primarily towards youth and families 
that reside in the south end of the City.  There will be monthly events, programs and activities 
offered at Howard Park, the Osborne Community Center and Norman Wimbley Gymnasium that 
include, but are not limited to, Youth Field Day, Splash Day, Movie in the Park, Club Cre8, Let’s 
Move, Archery Tag and Family Game Night. 
 
The City Attorney is working with PBSO on the attached agreement. If approved, the finalized 
agreement will be subject to City Attorney approval. 
 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 10-2022 to approve and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the Memorandum of Understanding between the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office and the 
City setting forth the terms and conditions for the use of $15,000 in funding assistance under 
the FUSION Mini-Project grant program to support the City’s community outreach program to 
be conducted in the south end of the City. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 



 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 15,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 15,000 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account Description Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

001-8061-
572.52-25 

Operating 
Supplies/Recreation 
Programs 

TBD $72,900 $61,035  $15,000 $46,035 

180-0000-
331.70-00 

Federal 
Grants/Culture/Recreation 

 $22,834 ($88,955)  ($15,000) ($103,955) 

*NOTE* The brackets around the revenues the amount of revenues collected that exceed the budgeted value. 

Resolution 10-2022 
Memorandum of Understanding 



10-2021 1 
 2 
 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 10-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 
FLORIDA, TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 5 
THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE PALM 6 
BEACH SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE CITY FOR $15,000 IN FUNDING 7 
UNDER THE FUSION MINI-PROJECT GRANT PROGRAM TO SUPPORT 8 

RECREATION PROGRAMS IN THE CITY’S SOUTH END; TO PROVIDE 9 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 10 

 11 
 WHEREAS, the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office (‘PBSO”) has been awarded funding 12 

under grant award 2018-BX-BJ-0004 by the Bureau of Justice Assistance; and 13 
 14 
 WHEREAS, the FUSION Project (“Project”) was created from this grant award to 15 

provide funding to address crime and quality of life determinants in the City of Lake Worth 16 

Beach; and 17 
 18 
 WHEREAS, as part of the overall Project plan, grant funds have been allocated to 19 

support mini-projects created and implemented by members of the FUSION Project-20 
Leadership Council (“Council”) that invest in youth by supporting behavioral health and 21 

recreational resources; and 22 
 23 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach (“City”) is a member of the Council and 24 

is thereby eligible to submit a proposal for funding assistance under the Program; and 25 
 26 

 WHEREAS, the City’s proposal requesting $15,000 in funding under the Project to 27 
implement recreational programs and activities for youth and their families residing in the 28 

southern end of the City has been approved by PBSO; and 29 
 30 
 WHEREAS, PBSO has prepared a Memorandum of Understanding that sets forth 31 

the terms and conditions for the use of this grant funding; and 32 
 33 

 WHEREAS, the City and PBSO desire to enter into this Memorandum of 34 
Understanding for this valid public purpose. 35 
 36 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 37 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 38 
 39 
SECTION 1: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida hereby 40 

approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Memorandum of Understanding 41 
between the City and the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office that sets forth the terms and 42 
conditions for the use of $15,000 in funding assistance under the FUSION Mini-Project 43 
grant program to implement recreational programs and activities for youth and their 44 
families residing in neighborhoods in the southern end of the City. 45 
 46 



Pg. 2, Reso. 10-2021 

SECTION 2: Upon execution of the resolution, one copy shall be forwarded to the Leisure 47 
Services Department Director.  The fully executed original shall be maintained by the City 48 
Clerk as a public record of the City.  49 

 50 
SECTION 3: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 51 

 52 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 53 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 54 

was as follows: 55 

Mayor Betty Resch  56 

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson  57 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  58 
Commissioner Christopher McVoy  59 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  60 
 61 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 62 

_____ day of ____________, 2021.  63 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 64 

 65 
 66 

By: __________________________ 67 

Betty Resch, Mayor 68 

 69 
ATTEST: 70 

 71 
 72 
______________________________ 73 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 74 



 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
SHERIFF RIC L. BRADSHAW  

AND  
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as the “MOU”) is entered into this 
____day of _________, 2021, and has been jointly prepared by and between   
RIC L. BRADSHAW, in his official capacity as Sheriff of Palm Beach County (hereinafter the “SHERIFF”) 
and City of Lake Worth Beach (hereinafter “CITY”), and sets forth the parties’ understanding of the 
respective duties and obligations concerning the implementation of the City of Lake Worth Beach 
Community Based Crime Reduction (CBCR) Grant Funded by the United States Department of Justice 
(DOJ). 
 
WHEREAS, the SHERIFF is a constitutional officer of the State of Florida, whose offices are at 3228 
Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, and desires to enter into this Agreement 
with CITY; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SHERIFF is the recipient of a grant award from the Department of Justice (DOJ), 
contract number 2018-BJ-BX-0004, in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for the period 
of October 1, 2018, through September 30, 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, CITY will partner with the SHERIFF to implement the City of Lake Worth South End 
Community-Based Crime Reduction Strategy.   
 
WHEREAS, CITY will receive funds not to exceed Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) to provide 
community outreach and youth engagement associated with the City of Lake Worth South End 
Community-Based Crime Reduction Strategy.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, it is agreed 
by and between the SHERIFF and CITY, as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: NATURE OF SERVICES: 
 
1. CITY shall provide such services as set forth in Attachment A & B, incorporated herein by reference. 
 

SECTION 2: MANNER OF PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES: 
 
1. CITY agrees to perform its duties and obligations in accordance with any and all applicable federal 

and state laws and regulations, including standards of professional ethics, during the term of this 
Agreement. 
 

2. CITY agrees to comply with all applicable special conditions set forth in Attachment C, including 
compliance with desktop monitoring reviews and/or on-site monitoring visits 
 

3. If, in the sole discretion of the SHERIFF, if CITY fails to diligently, faithfully or in the highest 
professional, ethical manner provide the requested services, the SHERIFF may communicate the 



2 

problem to CITY orally or in writing. If, following said notice, CITY fails to remedy the problem to 
the SHERIFF’s satisfaction, the SHERIFF may immediately terminate this Agreement without 
further notice and without penalty. 

SECTION 3:  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 

1. CITY, in performing services under this Agreement by and through its employees, agents, officers,
representatives, or any individuals utilized to fulfill the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
agrees that it will perform as an independent contractor. As such, CITY agrees to be responsible
for the payment of all taxes and withholdings specified by law which may be due in regard to
compensation paid by the SHERIFF. CITY further understands that its employees, agents,
officers, representatives, or any individuals utilized by CITY to fulfill the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, are not eligible to receive any pension, insurance, medical or other benefits from
the SHERIFF during this contractual relationship.

2. The SHERIFF shall not be liable for compensation, contribution, or indemnity to CITY, for any
injury or illness, of any kind whatsoever to its employees, agents, officers, representatives or any
individuals utilized by CITY, arising out of the performance of the services contracted for herein
to the extent such injury or illness is covered by the workers’ compensation insurance maintained
by CITY.

SECTION 4: INSURANCE: 

1. CITY agrees to provide a Certificate of Coverage for: Comprehensive General Liability Insurance
in an amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), and Worker’s Compensation Insurance with the
statutory limit of not less than $500,000 for each occurrence, naming the SHERIFF as an additional
insured. Confirmation of this shall appear on all Certificates of Insurance and on any and all
applicable policies. Said Certificates of Insurance are fully incorporated herein by reference and
shall be provided to the SHERIFF upon execution of this Agreement.

In the event that any coverage is terminated, canceled, or modified for any reason, the SHERIFF shall 
be given immediate written and verbal notice. Cancellation of any of the above referenced insurance 
coverages shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement by the SHERIFF. 

SECTION 5: COMPENSATION: 

1. CITY agrees to provide any and all services as herein described in Section 1 of the Agreement.

2. CITY shall submit a billing invoice upon completion of each deliverable provided as defined in 
Attachment A, and the SHERIFF shall pay said invoices within twenty-one (21) days of receipt, 
provided all supporting documentation is accurate and accounted for. The final invoice must be 
submitted by September 15th, 2022 or payment may be forfeited.

SECTION 6: TERM: 



 3 

 
1. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution by CITY and the SHERIFF and 

terminate on August 31, 2022, unless otherwise extended upon written agreement of each party.   
 

2. This Agreement may be terminated by either party, without cause, upon thirty (30) days prior 
written notice. 

 
SECTION 7: RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY:  
 
1. CITY agrees to hold all information inspected, reviewed, examined, or received from the Palm 

Beach County Sheriff's Office during the performance of services in trust or confidence and agrees 
that it shall be used only in accordance with this Agreement and not for any other purpose.  This 
section does not apply to information that became known to CITY from a source other than the 
SHERIFF, to information that is publicly available, or where disclosure of such information is 
required by law. It is expressly understood and agreed the obligations set forth in this section shall 
survive termination of this Agreement.  

 
2. CITY will maintain a record of all services provided and work performed under this Agreement for 

a period of five (5) fiscal years after completion of all work performed. CITY understands that such 
records may be a public record, and may include information subject to an exemption under 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. As such, CITY will notify the Sheriff in the event that a request for 
these records is received and/or assist the SHERIFF in responding to any relative public records 
requests. 

 
SECTION 8: INDEMNIFICATION: 
 
1. CITY shall indemnify and hold harmless the SHERIFF, its employees, agents and servants, from 

any liability arising from any and all claims or causes of actions, including without limitation, all 
damages, judgments, costs and attorney’s fees related to such claims, against the SHERIFF, its 
employees, agents and servants, as a result of the acts, omissions or negligence of CITY, or as a 
result of any injury to its employees, agents, officers, representatives or any individuals utilized by 
CITY where such injury is covered by the workers’ compensation insurance maintained 
by CITY, in performing the services as provided in this Agreement.   

 
SECTION 9: LAW AND VENUE: 
 
1. This Agreement shall be deemed to be made in and shall be construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Florida.  Any legal action arising from any breach of this Agreement shall be brought 
in the State of Florida, with venue in Palm Beach County, the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit.   
 

2. If either party initiates legal action as a result of a breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party 
in any such action shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs. 

 
 
SECTION 10: SEVERABILITY: 
 



 4 

1. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable, such terms 
shall be deemed stricken and the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 11: SUBCONTRACTING OR ASSIGNMENT: 
 
1. CITY shall not subcontract, assign, or delegate any portions of the work, obligations, or duties 

under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the SHERIFF. 
 
SECTION 12:  ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 
 
1. This Agreement states the entire Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the work 

to be performed hereunder. No amendment or waiver of any provision hereof shall be valid unless 
made in writing and executed in the same manner as this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 13: NOTICES: 
 
1. Any written notice given pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be sent by Certified Mail, 

Return Receipt Requested, as set forth below:  
 

 
As to the SHERIFF:  

RIC L. Bradshaw, SHERIFF 
Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office 
3228 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33406 

 
- and – 

 
Department of Legal Affairs 
Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office 
3228 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33406 

 
As to CITY:  

Betty Resch 
Mayor  
7 N Dixie Hwy 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day and year 
in which all signatures are affixed. 
 
 
RIC L. BRADHSAW, in his  
Official Capacity as Sheriff of      



 5 

Palm Beach County, Florida      
 
 
By: _____________________________   Date: _____________________ 
 RIC L. BRADSHAW, SHERIFF or 
 his designee 
 DUNS#18-280-9921 
 
 
CITY      
          
By: ______________________________   Date: ______________________ 

Betty Resch 
Mayor  
 

DUNS #: _______________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 



Attachment A 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

SCOPE OF SERVICE 

Attachment A Scope of Service 

I. Project Background and Description:

The Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) was awarded funding through the Department of Justice (DOJ), 
Office of Justice Programs (OJP), FY2018 Innovations in Community-Based Crime Reduction Program (CBCR). The 
CBCR focusses on high crime communities with concentrated distress and hot spots of crime. The goals of the 
CBCR are to reduce crime, increase mutual trust, and improve community safety as part of a comprehensive 
strategy to rebuild neighborhoods and spur revitalization; CBCR Programs employ data driven, cross sector 
strategies to accomplish these goal. The Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office has identified the City of Lake 
Worth’s South End Area as a high crime community with concentrated distress and hot spots of crime wherein this 
project will be implemented through a collaborative, multi-pronged, comprehensive strategy (Strategy). 

Specifically, our Strategy includes:  development of a multi-disciplinary South End Leadership Council (Council); 
implementation of a data collection and evaluation plan which will inform Strategy decision making; engagement of 
community members and community education; implementation of a comprehensive, evidence based law enforcement 
strategy; and provision of an array of services to meet the critical needs of persons living within the South End 
Community. 

To accomplish our strategic plan, the PBSO desires to enter into an agreement with the CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH (CITY) to provide monthly events, programs and activities geared towards strengthening the neighborhood 
community foundation by facilitating more opportunities to provide inclusive recreation events, programs, and 
activities with the goal of improving the quality of life for residents. Programs may include, but are not limited to 
Youth Field Day, Splash Day, Movie in the Park, Club Crea8, Let's Move, Archery Tag and Family Game night.   

II. Scope of Services:

This Scope of Services describes how the City of Lake Worth Beach will partner with the Palm Beach County 
Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) to execute the City of Lake Worth-South End Community-Based Crime Reduction 
Strategy and likewise participate in meeting the grants’ goals and objectives.  

CITY shall: 
1. Provide monthly events, programs, and activities geared towards strengthening the neighborhood community

foundation for local residents living in the City of Lake Worth-South End Community-Based Crime 
Reduction project area; 

2. Communicate with Project Director, Project Coordinator and/or Designee regarding project activities and any
related challenges or barriers to implementation;

3. Incorporate evaluation plan to include meeting with Barry University project evaluator to establish an evaluation
framework, collecting data outlined in evaluation plan, submitting monthly reports and a final project report
based on evaluation plan and data collection tool. 

• Monthly reports due 10th day of following month;
• Final report due September 20th, 2022



Attachment A 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

SCOPE OF SERVICE 

Attachment A Scope of Service 

III. Reimbursement/Invoicing:

The CITY will invoice PBSO on a monthly basis with supporting documentation (e.g. invoices, cancelled checks, etc.). 
Reimbursable grant expenses include: 

1. Event, program, activity related supplies & materials
2. Entertainment costs
3. Promotional expenses
4. Prizes/Awards for events
5.Items/Services as detailed in grant application

*Food & Beverage purchases are not reimbursable

Total Cost=$15,000 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 



ATTACHMENT B-Mini-Project Application























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 



ATTACHMENT C-DOJ GRANT AWARD DOCUMENT













































EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: February 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Change Order 02 to B&B Underground Construction, Inc. for the Lift Station 12 & 14 
Improvement Project. 

 
SUMMARY: 

Change Order 02 identifies a cost increase of $16,528.88 and time extension of 22 days to the 
B&B Underground Construction on the Lift Station 12 & 14 improvement Project.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City’s water department owns and operates Lift Station No. 14 located on Park Street in the 
northern industrial park near the ballfields.  Last year the water department prepared a design 
to rehab the lift station and extend it’s life for another 20+ years.   

The project was bid by B&B Underground on January 21, 2020 along with Lift Station No. 12.  
Funding for Lift Station No. 14 was delayed a year and the project was released to the contractor 
in an amendment on January 20, 2021.  Material Procurement was delayed another 12 weeks 
and the notice to proceed date was held until materials were secured.  During the delay the 
construction materials saw a cost escalation of $1,102.24.  During construction of the lift station 
a modification of the mounting brackets was needed to connect the effluent piping.  The 
additional cost for fabrication and installation of the brackets was $15,426.64.  The total cost of 
this change order amounts to $16,528.88 and adds 22 days to the contract.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Change Order 02 to B&B Underground Construction, Inc. for the 
Lift Station 12 & 14 Improvement Project for $16,528.88 and 22 contract days.    

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Change Order 02 
 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures $16,528.88 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $16,528.88 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

423-7221-
535.63-15 

Sewer - 
Infrastructure 

RS 1801 $0.00 ($145,134.03) $161,662.91 $16,528.88 $0.00 

        

 





Brian Shields 
2022.01.03 13:19:36 -05'00'



























EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  February 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 08-2022 – amending the City Commission’s Rules of Procedure 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City Commission requested to update its Rules of Procedure to change the “Electric Utility” 
meetings to the “Utility” meetings to include the City’s Water Utilities in said meetings. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 

The City Commission’s Rules of Procedure were initially adopted in 2004 by resolution and have 
been amended multiple times by subsequent resolutions with the most recent amendment in 
May 2021. At a recent City Commission meeting, the City Commission requested to update its 
Rules of Procedure to change the “Electric Utility” meetings to the “Utility” meetings to include 
the City’s Water Utilities in the meetings. 
 
In reviewing the current Rules of Procedure, an update to the agenda submission deadline and 
agenda publishing dates is also needed based on current practice of publishing the agenda two 
(2) weeks prior to the Commission meeting date.  
 
Resolution No. 08-2022 implements the aforementioned amendments to the City Commission’s 
Rules of Procedure.  There are two others issues to consider which are highlighted on the 
resolution, Rule 5, numbers 3 and 6 regarding adding items to the agenda and Rule 12 regarding 
comment cards.  The item was moved from the January 18, 2022 meeting. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Resolution No. 08-2022 - amending the City Commission’s Rules 
of Procedure. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution No. 08-2022 



08-2022 1 

 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 3 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR LAKE 4 

WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS 5 

IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 6 

 7 

 8 

WHEREAS, in 2004, the City Commission adopted rules of procedure for City 9 

Commission meetings, which have been amended for a variety of reasons over time (see 10 

Resolutions 05-2004, 26-2006, 48-2007, 49-2007, 32-2008, 06-2009, 33-2009,04-2011, 11 

14-2011, 05-2012, 17-2012, 09-2013, 56-2013, 59-2015, 26-2017, 46-2018 and 25-12 

2021); and, 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to amend its rules of procedure to change the 15 

City’s Electric Utility meeting to the City’s Utility meeting for the inclusion of the City’s 16 

Water Utilities in those meetings; and  17 

 18 

WHEREAS, the City Commission also desires to update the date for agenda items to be 19 

submitted and the agenda publishing date to ensure greater public awareness and 20 

transparency of agenda items coming before the City Commission for consideration; and 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds the revisions to the City Commission’s rules of 23 

procedure as set forth in this Resolution are necessary to maintain orderly conduct of all 24 

City Commission meetings and serve a valid public purpose. 25 

 26 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 27 

BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 28 

 29 

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution as true 30 

and correct statements. 31 

 32 

Section 2.  The City Commission’s adopted Rules of Procedure for the Lake Worth 33 

Beach City Commission are amended as follows (added language is underlined and 34 

deleted language is struck-through): 35 

 36 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 37 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 38 

 39 

RULE 1 40 

SCHEDULING OF MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS 41 

 42 

(1) Regular meetings of the City Commission shall be held on the first and third 43 

Tuesday of each month, in the Commission Chambers, at City Hall, 7 North 44 

Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida, and beginning at 6:00 P.M.  45 

 46 

If a regular meeting date falls on a holiday, the meeting shall be held in the 47 

Commission Chambers, at City Hall on the next day immediately following the 48 

holiday, beginning at 6:00 P.M.  49 



Pg. 2, Reso. 08-2022 

 
 50 

The City Commission may cancel not more than one regular meeting in any 51 

month. 52 

 53 

(2) Electric Utility meetings of the City Commission, which shall include matters 54 

regarding the City’s Electric Utility and Water Utilities, shall be held on the last 55 

Tuesday of each month, in the Commission Chambers, at City Hall, 7 North 56 

Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida beginning at 6:00 P.M. If an Electric 57 

Utility meeting date falls on a holiday or conflicts with the need for a Regular or 58 

special meeting of the City Commission, the Electric Utility meeting may be re-59 

scheduled to another date ideally during the last week of the month or the 60 

Electric Utility meeting may be cancelled. Electric Utility matters may be heard 61 

at regular and special meetings of the City Commission. Except as set forth 62 

herein, the Electric Utility meetings shall follow the same format, procedure and 63 

have the same rules of procedure as a regular meeting of the City Commission. 64 

 65 

(3) A special meeting of the City Commission to canvass ballots shall be held as 66 

required by the City Charter.  Other special meetings may be called by a majority 67 

of the members of the City Commission or by the Mayor. Notice of special 68 

meetings shall be given to each Commissioner1 and to the public at least twenty-69 

four (24) hours in advance except for emergency meetings. If the Mayor or a 70 

member of the Commission is absent from the City or otherwise beyond reach 71 

of actual notice, failure to give such notice shall not prevent the convening of 72 

the special meeting. The City Commission may act on any matter presented at 73 

the special meeting unless prohibited by the City Charter or by rules established 74 

by the City Commission. Special meetings shall be held in the Commission 75 

Chambers or Commission Meeting Room at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, 76 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida, or at such other location within the City as may be 77 

designated in the notice of the special meeting, beginning at a time to be 78 

specified in the notice of the special meeting. 79 

  80 

(4)  Work Sessions of the City Commission may be called by a majority of the 81 

members of the City Commission or by the Mayor, and any matter may be 82 

discussed or studied at a work session.  Any matter that appears likely to take 83 

more than thirty (30) minutes shall be discussed or studied at a work session 84 

prior to official action of the City Commission, unless this requirement is waived 85 

by a majority vote. No official action of the City Commission shall be taken at a 86 

work session.  All work sessions shall end at 10:00 P.M.  At 10:00 P.M., the City 87 

Commission shall cease further discussion on the business on the table and, 88 

upon a majority consensus of the City Commission present, determine whether 89 

to (1) adjourn the meeting; or (2) extend the meeting and continue to conduct 90 

the meeting until 11:00 PM.  Thereafter, the meeting shall end, unless extended 91 

one hour, upon a majority consensus of the City Commission present. All 92 

meetings shall adjourn automatically at 12:00 AM.  93 

 94 

(5) “District Public Forums” may be held by the City Commission on a quarterly 95 

basis beginning in October 2021, one to be held in each district of the City on 96 

a rotating basis. Notice of such meetings shall be posted no less than 14 days 97 

before each meeting. No official action shall be taken at these meetings. 98 



Pg. 3, Reso. 08-2022 

 
 99 

(6) All regular and special meetings shall end at 10:00 P.M. At 10:00 P.M. the City 100 

Commission shall cease further discussion on the business on the table and, upon 101 

a majority vote of the City Commission present, determine whether or not to (1) 102 

adjourn the meeting; or (2) extend the meeting and continue to conduct the 103 

meeting until 11:00 PM. Thereafter, the meeting shall end, unless extended one 104 

hour, upon a majority vote of the City Commission present. All meetings shall 105 

adjourn automatically at 12:00 AM. 106 

 107 

Rule 1 is exempt from the provisions of Rule 11 Amendment or Waiver of Rules and shall 108 

not be waived, except where such waiver is expressly permitted in paragraph (4) of Rule 109 

1 (regarding the 30 minute limitation on discussions), and shall only be amended by 110 

resolution. 111 

 112 

RULE 2 113 

QUORUM 114 

 115 

A majority of the City Commission shall constitute a quorum; a smaller number may 116 

adjourn a meeting or recess a meeting to a time certain. No ordinance, resolution, or 117 

motion shall be adopted except by the affirmative vote of at least three members of the 118 

City Commission. 119 

 120 

RULE 3 121 

ABSENT MEMBER PARTICIPATION BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 122 

 123 

Up to two (2) members of the City Commission, who are physically absent due to 124 

extraordinary circumstances, may participate through electronic means in a City 125 

Commission work session or meeting and vote in a meeting if a quorum of the 126 

Commission is physically present at the meeting or work session location.  127 

 128 

RULE 4 129 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE “CHAIR” 130 

 131 

(1) The Mayor shall be the presiding officer of the City Commission, and shall be 132 

referred to as the “Chair” when sitting in that capacity.  In case of the absence or 133 

the disability of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor shall assume the responsibilities of the 134 

 presiding officer, and if both are absent or disabled, the Vice Mayor Pro Tem shall 135 

 preside. 136 

 137 

(2) The Chair shall preserve order.  The Chair may call to order any member of the 138 

Commission and any member of the public who shall violate any of these rules or 139 

otherwise disrupt the orderly proceeding of the meeting.  The Chair shall decide 140 

all questions of order subject to a majority vote on an appeal of the decision. 141 

 142 

(3) The Chair shall recognize all Commissioners who seek the floor while entitled to 143 

do so. 144 

 145 

(4) The Chair shall not make or second a motion. 146 

 147 



Pg. 4, Reso. 08-2022 

 
RULE 5 148 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 149 

 150 

(1) The order of business for a regular meeting shall ordinarily be: 151 

 152 

1. Roll Call 153 

2. Invocation or Moment of Silence 154 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 155 

4. Agenda-Additions/Deletions/Reordering 156 

5. Presentations 157 

6.  Commission Liaison Reports and Comments 158 

7. Public Participation on Non-Agendaed Items and Consent Agenda 159 

8. Approval of Minutes 160 

9. Consent Agenda 161 

10. Public Hearings 162 

11. Unfinished Business 163 

12. New Business 164 

13. Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility 165 

143. City Attorney’s Report 166 

154. City Manager’s Report 167 

165.  Upcoming meetings and work sessions 168 

176. Adjournment  169 

 170 

(2) The order of business may be revised by a majority vote. 171 

 172 

(3) Matters may be placed on the agenda by any Commissioner, the City Manager, 173 

or the City Attorney. 174 

 175 

(4) Except for matters advertised for public hearing, any matter may be removed 176 

from an agenda by the person who placed it on the agenda or by a majority 177 

vote. 178 

 179 

(5) When a matter comes before the Commission that directly affects one election 180 

district, the Commissioner from that district shall have the privilege of both 181 

expressing his or her views and making a motion on that matter first. 182 

 183 

(6) Matters may be placed under Presentations by any Commissioner or the City 184 

Manager. 185 

 186 

(7) The Invocation or Moment of Silence shall be offered by the Mayor or a member 187 

of the Commission on a rotating basis. The Mayor or Commissioner whose turn 188 

it is to deliver the invocation or moment of silence may designate another 189 

individual to deliver the invocation on their behalf.  Any individual who delivers 190 

the invocation shall not denigrate nonbelievers or religious minorities, threaten 191 

damnation, or preach conversion.  Any individual who delivers the invocation is 192 

encouraged to be respectful in tone. 193 

 194 

 195 

  196 



Pg. 5, Reso. 08-2022 

 
RULE 6 197 

DEBATE OF MOTIONS; VOTING 198 

 199 

(1) When debating or discussing a motion, a Commissioner shall address the Chair 200 

and await recognition before speaking.  The Commissioner making a motion is 201 

entitled to the floor first for debate.  No Commissioner is entitled to the floor a 202 

second time on the same motion as long as any other Commissioner who has 203 

not spoken on the issue desires the floor. 204 

 205 

(2) Motions and amendments can be withdrawn or modified by the maker at any 206 

time prior to the Chair’s stating the question on the motion; after that time, the 207 

permission of the Commission majority must be obtained. The Chair cannot 208 

close debate as long as any member who has not exhausted his right to debate 209 

desires the floor. 210 

 211 

(3) Members of the public are permitted to participate upon opening of the floor for 212 

public comment by the Chair during Public Participation on Non-Agendaed 213 

Items and Consent Agenda (No. 6 above) and during each item of Public 214 

Hearing (No. 10 above), Unfinished Business (No. 11 above), and New 215 

Business (No. 12 above). Under the Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility portion 216 

of a regular Commission meeting (No. 13 above), the public are permitted to 217 

participate upon opening of the floor for public comment by the Chair during 218 

Consent Agenda and during each item of Unfinished Business and New 219 

Business. The time shall be limited to three (3) minutes per public participant 220 

for Public Participation on Non-Agendaed Items and Consent Agenda (No. 6 221 

above). The time shall be limited to two (2) minutes per public participant on all 222 

issues of Public Hearing (No. 10 above), Unfinished Business (No. 11 above), 223 

and New Business (No. 12 above). Under the Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility 224 

portion of a regular Commission meeting (No. 13 above), the time shall be 225 

limited to three (3) minutes for the Consent Agenda and two (2) minutes for 226 

Unfinished Business and New Business. During a public hearing, the 227 

presentations shall be limited to ten minutes each but the time may be extended 228 

to permit questioning.  229 

 230 

(4) A member of the audience who speaks to the City Commissioner may be 231 

questioned for additional information, but Commissioners shall not engage in 232 

debate with a member of the audience. Members of the audience may ask 233 

questions but may not compel a Commissioner, the City Manager, or the City 234 

Attorney to answer questions during a meeting. 235 

 236 

(5) The Chair shall restate all motions before the vote is taken. 237 

 238 

(6) A tie vote shall constitute a continuance of the item to the next regular meeting, 239 

but upon a tie vote on the same item at the next meeting, the item shall not be 240 

rescheduled except upon the request of the City Manager, the City Attorney, or 241 

a Commissioner. 242 

 243 



Pg. 6, Reso. 08-2022 

 
(7) The failure of a motion stated in the negative shall not be deemed an affirmative 244 

action.  For example, the failure of a motion to deny shall not constitute an 245 

approval. 246 

 247 

(8) During a presentation, the presenter shall have ten minutes to make his or her 248 

presentation but the time may be extended to permit questioning of the 249 

presenter. 250 

RULE 7 251 

NON-DEBATABLE MOTIONS 252 

 253 

The following motions are not debatable: 254 

 255 

To adjourn; 256 

To lay on the table; 257 

To take from the table; 258 

To divide a question; 259 

To close or re-open nominations; 260 

To take a recess; 261 

A point of information; 262 

An appeal of a decision of the Chair; 263 

The previous question. 264 

 265 

RULE 8 266 

RECONSIDERATION 267 

 268 

Any member of the Commission may move to reconsider any action of the 269 

Commission provided that new relevant information is presented to the Commission 270 

and the motion be made by the next regular Commission meeting.  No motion to 271 

reconsider shall be made more than once on any subject or matter. 272 

 273 

RULE 9 274 

COMMISSION MINUTES 275 

 276 

Copies of the minutes of the regular meetings shall be furnished, when possible, at 277 

least five days prior to the next regular meeting. Such minutes shall stand confirmed 278 

at the regular meeting of the Commission without the reading thereof in open meeting 279 

unless some inaccuracy or error is pointed out by some member of the Commission 280 

present, and in such event, an appropriate correction shall be made.  Upon request, 281 

the City Manager will cause the City Clerk to provide any Commissioner with access 282 

to Commission meeting recordings or transcribed excerpts of City Commission 283 

meetings. No member shall suggest to the City Clerk any revision in minutes of 284 

meetings before the same shall have been submitted to the full Commission for 285 

approval, unless specifically requested by the Clerk to make clarification. 286 

 287 

RULE 10 288 

ADOPTION OF ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 289 

 290 

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, are adopted as the rules of procedure of the 291 

City Commission, but such Rules shall not take precedence over any provision of 292 



Pg. 7, Reso. 08-2022 

 
Florida law, the City Charter, an ordinance or resolution of the City, or these rules, 293 

which shall govern in the event of conflict.  A failure to comply with Robert’s Rules of 294 

Order or these rules shall not affect the validity of any action taken by the City 295 

Commission. 296 

 297 

RULE 11 298 

AMENDMENT OR WAIVER OF RULES 299 

 300 

These rules of procedure may be amended or waived by a majority vote, provided that 301 

no such amendment shall conflict with any applicable provision of Florida law, the City 302 

Charter, or an ordinance of the City. 303 

 304 

RULE 12 305 

AGENDA PROCEDURES 306 

 307 

(1) Agenda submittal deadline:  The deadline for submitting items for inclusion on 308 

an agenda shall be no later than 12:00 PM on Friday of the week , 11 days 309 

prior to the deadline for distributing a final agendaa regularly scheduled 310 

Commission meeting. 311 

 312 

(2) Agenda distribution deadline:  The deadline for distributing a final agenda with 313 

supporting documents shall be no later than Thursday, two (2)the weeks prior 314 

to a regularly scheduled City Commission meeting. 315 

 316 

For all special or workshop City Commission meetings, the agendas with 317 

supporting documents will be distributed consistent with the timeframe 318 

referenced above. 319 

 320 

(3) Amendment to agenda:  There shall be no additions to a distributed City 321 

Commission agenda unless the matter is deemed to be an emergency. 322 

 323 

In the case of an emergency, any person or City Commissioner requesting an 324 

addition to the distributed City Commission agenda must do so in writing, 325 

provide written justification for the emergency within the narrative of an agenda 326 

memorandum, and include supporting backup material to the City Manager no 327 

later than 5:00 PM the Friday before a regularly scheduled Commission 328 

meeting. 329 

 330 

The name of the person or City Commissioner requesting the addition shall be 331 

placed with the agenda item to be presented. The written justification and 332 

supporting backup material shall be submitted to the City Commission prior to 333 

a regularly scheduled Commission meeting. 334 

 335 

At the beginning of the City Commission meeting, the City Commission shall 336 

review the emergency and, in its discretion, will determine whether it will 337 

accept, review and take action on the addition requested. 338 

  339 



Pg. 8, Reso. 08-2022 

 
RULE 13 340 

PRESERVE ORDER 341 

 342 

Intentionally deleted and reserved for future consideration. 343 

  344 

RULE 14 345 

DECORUM FOR CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 346 

 347 

In support of and respect for an open, fair and informed decision-making process, the 348 

City Commission and Administration recognize that: 349 

 350 

(1) Civil, respectful and courteous discourse and behavior are conducive to the 351 

democratic and harmonious airing of concerns and decision making; and 352 

 353 

(2) Un-civil discourse and/or discourteous and inappropriate behavior have a 354 

negative impact on the character and productivity of the decision-making 355 

process. 356 

 357 

(a) In an effort to preserve the intent of open government and maintain a positive 358 

environment for citizen input and Commission decision-making, the following Rules of 359 

Decorum for Citizen Participation have been established. 360 

 361 

Compliance with these rules is expected and appreciated. The Rules of Decorum for 362 

Citizen Participation will be referenced in the agenda. A written list of the Rules of 363 

Decorum for Citizen Participation will also be printed and mounted upon the walls of 364 

the Commission Chamber and Conference Room and referenced on comment cards 365 

utilized in the Commission Chamber.  366 

 367 

(1) Speakers will conduct themselves in a civil and respectful manner at all times. 368 

 369 

(2) Speakers will address the Chair. 370 

 371 

(3) Questions to Commission members or City staff will be facilitated by the 372 

Chair. 373 

 374 

(4) Speakers will refrain from the use of obscene language, “fighting words” likely 375 

to incite violence from the individuals(s) to whom the words are addressed or 376 

other language that is disruptive to the orderly and fair progress of discussion 377 

at the meeting. 378 

 379 

(5) Speakers will refrain from making comments of a personal nature regarding 380 

others. 381 

 382 

(6) Name-calling and/or obscenity is forbidden. 383 

 384 

(7) Shouting, yelling or screaming is forbidden. 385 

 386 

(8) Commission Work Session or Public Hearing attendees (audience) will refrain 387 

from commenting, shouting, booing, clapping, stomping feet or other 388 



Pg. 9, Reso. 08-2022 

 
inappropriate and/or disruptive behavior.  Brief clapping is permissible at the 389 

end of a speaker’s comments. 390 

 391 

It is the intent of Commission to maintain order and enforce the Rules of Decorum 392 

for Citizen Participation for its meetings.  Disregard of these rules will be met with 393 

the following consequences: 394 

 395 

(1) The Chair will identify out loud the out-of-compliance behavior and request 396 

for the behavior to stop;  397 

 398 

(2) The Chair will ask the speaker to have a seat if he/she continues to disrupt 399 

the meeting;  400 

 401 

(3) If the speaker refuses to have a seat, the Chair will recess the meeting; and 402 

 403 

(4) Will instruct a law enforcement officer to instruct the speaker to stop the 404 

disruptive conduct and escort the speaker out of the meeting venue. 405 

 406 

 407 

Section 3. All resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 408 

 409 

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.  410 

 411 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner 08 seconded by 08, 412 

and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 413 

 414 

Mayor Betty Resch   415 

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 416 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  417 

Commissioner Christopher McVoy  418 

Commissioner Kim Stokes  419 

 420 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on this 421 

___ day of ______________ 2022. 422 

 423 

 424 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 425 

 426 

 427 

By: ___________________________  428 

Betty Resch, Mayor 429 

 430 

ATTEST: 431 

 432 

 433 

_________________________ 434 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk  435 

 436 


	Top
	A.	01/12 AWS minutes
	DRAFT 011222 AWS minutes

	B.	01/18 RM minutes
	DRAFT 011822 RM minutes

	A.	Agreements with Florida Building Alliance Corp. and RMJ Maintenance Corp.
	Florida Building Alliance and RMJ Staff Report
	Agreement - Florida Building Alliance
	Agreement-RMJ Maintenance

	B.	Resolution No. 10-2022  - Memorandum of Understanding for FUSION Mini-Grant Award
	FUSION MOU Staff Report
	Resolution 10-2022
	MOU & Attachments

	C.	Final Change Order to B&B Underground for Lift Station 14
	B&B Staff Report
	Change Order 2

	A.	Resolution No. 08-2022 - amending the Rules and Procedures of Commission meetings
	Rules of Procedure Staff Report
	Resolution 08-2022

	Bottom

